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Mr. S.S.N. Murthy : Director - Finance (w.e.f 13th August 2018)

THIRTY FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Thursday

27th September, 2018

10.00 A.M.

Kumar & Giri

(resigned w.e.f. 30th July 2018)

Notes to Financial Statements
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Fifth Annual General Meeting of Bambino Agro Industries Limited will be 

held on Thursday, the 27th September 2018 at 10.00 A.M. at K.L.N. Prasad Auditorium at The Federation of 

Telangana and Andhra Pradesh Chambers of Commerce and Industry (FTAPCCI), Federation House, 11-6-841, 

Red Hills, FTAPCCI Marg, Hyderabad 500004, Telengana to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended 31st March 2018 and reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend on the equity shares for the financial year 2017-18.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Myadam Shirisha (DIN No. 07906214) who retires by rotation and 

being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

Special Business:-

4.  Appointment of Mr. S S N Murthy (DIN No: 08189713), as a Director of the Company 

 To consider and, if thought fit , to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary  resolution:-

 "RESOLVED THAT pursuant to sections 152,161 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014 (including any 

statutory amendment(s), modification(s), or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Articles of 

Association of the Company, Mr. S S N Murthy (DIN No: 08189713), who was appointed as an Additional 

Director of the Company by the Board in its meeting held on 30th July 2018 and who holds office upto the 

date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company w.e.f. 13th 

August 2018 whose period of office shall not be liable to retire by rotation."

5. Appointment of Mr. S S N Murthy (DIN No. 08189713) as Director- Finance of the Company 

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary resolution:-

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196 & 203 read with Schedule V and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory amendment(s), 

modification(s), or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Articles of Association of the 

Company, consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to appoint Mr. S S N Murthy (DIN No: 

08189713) as Director - Finance of the Company for a period of three years, w.e.f. 13th August 2018 

whose office shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 196, 197 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s), clarification(s) thereof, for 

the time being in force) read with Schedule V and Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and subject to such approvals as may be necessary, Mr. S S N Murthy 

(DIN No: 08189713) be paid a remuneration of ` 7,00,000/- per month as Director - Finance of the 

Company w.e.f. 13th August 2018 for three years in absence of adequate profits or no profits in any year, 

the same shall be paid as minimum remuneration."

6.  Adoption of Memorandum of Association

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 

resolution:-

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 4(1)(c), Section13 and all other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (including 



any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the amended set of 

Memorandum of Association be and are hereby approved.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors  of the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all 

acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

7. Addition to the main Objects of Memorandum of Association

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 

resolution:-

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the following clauses be inserted after 

clause III.1 in the main objects of the Company:-

 2. To carry on the business as manufacturers, producers, growers, makers, buyers, sellers, importers, 

exporters, distributors, agents, brokers, consultants, factors, stockists, commission agents, dealers, market 

makers, hemp, seeds, oils and cakes, vanaspati, textile, fibre, coir, jute and products thereof, wood and 

timber, manures, pulp or wood rags, rubber, biological products, instruments and appliances, soaps & 

detergents, mill work and parts thereof, fruits, nuts, cashew –nuts, kernels, grains, pulses and dals, flours, tea 

and coffee, vegetables and vegetable products, processes foods and packed food, sweets, instant foods 

and mixes, namkeens, fryums, pallets of varied kinds, spices and powders, frozen foods and cold storage, 

agro and agricultural products, all processed and packaged foods, all kinds of fabric, garments and hosiery 

goods, agarbatti, dhupbatti, carpets, durries, mats and rugs.

 3. To act as an agent, broker, representative, consultant, collaborator, stockiest, lessor, franchiser, wholesaler, 

retailer, job-worker, exporter, importer, dealer or in any such other capacity in respect of products 

manufactured or dealt with by the Company. 

 4. To carry on business of contractors, Builders, Town planners, Infrastructure developers, Estate developers 

and Engineers land developers, Land Scapers, estate agents, immovable property dealers and to acquire, 

buy, purchase, hire or otherwise lands, buildings, civil works  of all commercial, non commercial and 

residential immovable property in India or abroad."

8. Adoption of Articles of Association

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 

resolution:-

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the draft regulations contained in the 

Articles of Association be and are hereby approved and adopted in substitution, and to the entire exclusion, 

of the regulations contained in the existing Articles of Association of the Company."

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Bambino Agro Industries Limited

Ritu Tiwary

Company Secretary & Legal

M. No. ACS19056

Registered Office:
4E, Surya Towers, S.P. Road, 

Secunderabad - 500 003.

CIN No. L15440TG1983PLC004363

Ph: 040-4436332; Fax No: 040 27816615

Email: cs@bambinoagro.com

Date: 30th July 2018
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21st September 2018 to 27th
September 2018

20th September 2018.

9.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore, requested to submit their PAN to the Depository Participants with whom they maintain their demat 
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form should submit their PAN to the Registrar/Company.

 Share holder having shares in physical shares: In terms of notification dated 08th June 2018, issued by 
Securities & Exchanges Board of India (SEBI) request for transfer of shares in physical form shall not be 
processed by Companies or Registrar w.e.f. 05th December 2018. Therefore in order to transfer your shares 
on or after 05th December 2018, shares are to be mandatorily in dematerialised form. 

Ms. Myadam Shirisha, Director,

Ms. Myadam Shirisha, aged 19 years is pursuing her Bachelors of Business Administration from Amity College 
of Hyderabad. She holds 14,43,215 Equity Shares. of the Company and is not a Director on Board of any other 
company.

10.



35th

2018

2017
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Monday, 24 September, 2018
thWednesday, the 26  September, 2018, 

Thursday, the 
th20  September, 2018, 

thThursday, 20  September, 2018.

Registered Office:
4E, Surya Towers, S.P. Road, 
Secunderabad - 500 003.
CIN No. L15440TG1983PLC004363
Ph: 040-4436332; Fax No: 040 27816615
Email: cs@bambinoagro.com
Date: 30th July 2018



Item No. 4 & 5

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 30th July 2018, appointed Mr. S S N Murthy as an Additional 

Director of the Company and on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee designated 

him as Director-Finance for a period of three years w.e.f 13th August 2018 on a remuneration of ` 7,00,000/- 

p.m. His office will not be liable to retire by rotation.

Mr. S S N Murthy aged 66 years, a Commerce Graduate having vast and varied experience of over 35 years in the 

field of Project Implementation, Finance, Management and other areas of Food Processing Industry. He has been 

leading the Finance functions with strong financial management skills over the years. In his previous roles, he 

was also charged with management of Strategic Treasury activities, inclusive of cash flow forecasts, bank 

partnerships, and debt management. He also played the role of a mentor to key corporate finance personnel, 

encouraging their professional growth. His expertise is tasked with leading adhoc financial analyses to assist 

management in the evaluation of the profitability of income streams as well as the potential for cost efficiencies. 

Alongside advising in the business on financially related issues, his illustrious career has been demonstrated 

throughout with strong analytical skills acquired, covering a broad spectrum of financial structures, financial 

business plans and deep understanding of accounting principles as well as a solid understanding of financial 

controls and procedures. His appointment, if considered, would be of immense value to the organization. His last 

assignment was as Vice President - Corporate Affairs in Ghanta Foods Pvt Ltd. It is now a gradual transition to 

bring his expertise on Board to further enhance and strengthen the financial frontier of the Company. Mr. S S N 

Murthy holds 400 Equity shares of the Company as on date and is not disqualified from being appointed as a 

Director in terms of Section 164 of Companies Act, 2013. He is not a Director on Board of any other Company.

The terms set out in the resolution and explanatory statement may be treated as an abstract of terms of 

appointment pursuant to section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013 & compliance of regulation 36(3) of SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Except Mr. S S N Murthy, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives 

are concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution. 

Members are requested to approve the same by way of an Ordinary Resolution. 

Item No. 6,7 &8

The existing Memorandum of Association (MoA) /Articles of Association (AoA) are based on the Companies 

Act, 1956 and several regulations in the existing MoA/AoA contain references to specific sections of the 

Companies Act, 1956 and some regulations in the existing MoA/AoA are no longer in conformity with the New 

Companies Act, 2013. Hence, it is considered expedient to wholly replace the existing AoA by a new set of 

Articles and amend MoA to some extent which shall be in conformity with the new Companies Act, 2013. 

Alongside the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 30th July 2018 have also recommended to diversify and 

expand its business base by intending to venture in the fields of dealer/distribution of various products and in 

real estate as enlisted in the addition to the main objects.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.
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The proposed new draft MoA/AoA are being uploaded on the Company's website for perusal by the 

shareholders. The draft MoA/AoA shall be available for inspection during the meeting and can be inspected by 

members during the business hours between 11.00 am to 01.00 pm on any working day at the registered office 

of the company.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is, in any way, concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed Special Resolution set out at Item No. 6,7& 8 of the Notice. 

Members are requested to approve the same by way of special resolution.

Registered Office:
4E, Surya Towers, S.P. Road, 
Secunderabad - 500 003.
CIN No. L15440TG1983PLC004363
Ph: 040-4436332; Fax No: 040 27816615
Email: cs@bambinoagro.com
Date: 30th July 2018



2529.07

2361.49

31st March 2018 31st March 2017

16872.70

1483.81

608.06

875.74

284.03

591.71

-

(173.84)

(34.39)

383.48

2529.07

-

2912.55

-

-

-

19.18

9.55

During the period under review, your company has earned revenue from operations and other income of 

` 16872.70 lacs with a net profit of  ̀  383.48 lacs. The net profit has shown a positive impact despite the compact 

turnover when compared to last financial year. To combat the continued experience in the sluggish market and 

to minimize the impact of all this, company intends to focus on strengthening the distribution network, growing in 

weaker geographies and continuously striving for product innovation. Your Company will continue to scout for 

opportunities to enter new categories in food and in new geographies.

We continue to strengthen and drive our analogy of products by entering into category of cereals, liquid food and 

Whole Wheat Atta with our base material. New category extensions have been made in Vermicelli, Macaroni, 

Spaghetti and Pasta variants. Several opportunities are also in pipeline.

31st March 2018.

H

1687.02

813.97

539.41

372.59

2734.08

33.81Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax
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2018

19,17,382 2018

2018

2018

The dates on which the Board Meetings were held are 23rd May 2017, 6th July 2017, 12th August 2017, 9th 

September 2017, 13th November 2017, 28th November 2017 and 13th February 2018. The maximum time gap 

between any two consecutive meeting was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

2018

2018

and

st

st

st



the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the same is enclosed as Annexure - 1 to this Report. The policy on 

Related Party Transactions is available on the Company's website at http://bambinoagro.com / wp-content 

/uploads/2015/12/RPT-POLICY.pdf
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12.50

The Board of Directors of the Company on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its 
meeting held on 30th July 2018 appointed Mr. S.S.N. Murthy as Additional Director of the Company up to the date 
of ensuing AGM. Board further recommends appointment of Mr. S.S.N. Murthy as Director - Finance for a period of 
3 years w.e.f. 13th August 2018 on a remuneration of `. 7,00,000/- per month. Necessary resolutions seeking 
approval of members for appointment have been incorporated in the Notice of Annual General Meeting. 

Mr. Sanjay Baral, Director - Sales & Marketing resigned from the Board on 30th July 2018.

Ms. Myadam Shirisha (DIN No. 07906214) Director of the Company retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
herself for re-appointment.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Board Evaluation

Directors



At the 34th Annual General Meeting held on 29th March 2018 M/s. Kumar & Giri, Chartered Accountants (FRN 

No. 001584S) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of 5 consecutive 

years till the conclusion of 39th Annual General Meeting (subject to ratification by the shareholders at each 

Annual General Meeting). 

In terms of first proviso to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of the Auditors shall be 

placed for ratification at every Annual General Meeting. However, Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 omitted 

the first proviso to section 139 of Companies Act, 2013, that required ratification of appointment of Auditors at 

every Annual General Meeting. 

Accordingly M/s. Kumar & Giri, Chartered Accountants will continue as Statutory Auditors of the company till 

conclusion of 39th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Loans, Guarantees and Investments

During the year, the Company has not given any loans, guarantees or made any investments covered under the 

provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of investments made by company are given in the notes to the financial statements.

Audit Reports

  Report of the Statutory Auditors for the year does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark of 

disclaimer or reporting of any offence or fraud.

  The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark of disclaimer.

Cost Audit

The Company is not required to maintain any cost records pursuant to the 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details pertaining to the role, objective and composition of the Audit Committee are included in the 

Corporate Governance Report which is part of the Annual Report for the year. 

Statutory Auditors

Secretarial Auditors
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2018

Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS)

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) with effect from April 1, 2017 pursuant to 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The 

financials for the financial year 2017-18 were presented as per the Ind As format. 

st

Companies Act, 2013



2018,

Date: 30th July 2018

CEO's Declaration
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43.99 cr

2018

30th May

2018

by trading in goods 

with Bambino Pasta 

Food Industries Pvt Ltd. 

Seshsayi Foods Pvt. Ltd.

Ghanta Foods Pvt Ltd.



30th May

2018

2018

0.20 cr

2018

7.29 cr

30th May

2018

for brand rights,

30th July 2018



31st March 2018
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92.10



 5786258 217376 6003634 74.96 5847858 155776 6003634 74.96 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 5876258 217376 6003634 74.96 5847858 155776 6003634 74.96 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 5786258 217376 6003634 74.96 5847858 155776 6003634 74.96 0.00

 0 5204 5204 0.06 0 5204 5204 0.06 0.00

 100 0 100 0.00 100 0 100 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 100 5204 5304 0.07 100 5204 5304 0.07 0.00



Annual Report 2017-18

 141734 23701 165435 2.07 128531 23701 152232 1.90 0.16

 656117 834082 1490199 18.61 709925 800475 1510400 18.86 -0.25

 275211 0 275211 3.44 277918 0 277918 3.47 -0.03

 741 0 741 0.01 395 0 395 0.00 0.00

 29648 37966 67614 0.84 13194 32800 45994 0.57 0.27

 708 0 708 0.01 12969 0 12969 0.16 -0.15

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 1104159 895749 1999908 24.97 1142932 856976 1999908 24.97 0.00

 1104259 900953 2005212 25.04 1143032 862180 2005212 25.04 0.00

 6890517 1118329 8008846 100.00 6990890 1017956 8008846 100.00 0.00

 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 6890517 1118329 8008846 100.00 6990890 1017956 8008846 100

1

1



1 Late Myadam Raghuveer 5772858 72.08 - - - - 100

2 Myadam Anita  148758 1.86 - 1591973 19.88 - 18.02

3 Myadam Shirisha  0 - - 1443215 18.02 - 18.02

4 Myadam Kartekeya 7018 0.09 - 1450232 18.11 - 18.02

5 Myadam Sugandha Bai  0 0.00 - 1443215 18.02 - 18.02

6 Myadam Subramanyam 75000 0.94 0.94 75000 0.94 0.94 -

 Total 6003634 74.96  6003634 74.96 



Late Myadam Raghuveer
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Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of 

GDRs and ADRs)

1 Madhu Aggarwal 65019 0.81 65019 0.81

2 Swarana Kumari Sridhara Murthy 59605 0.74 54687 0.68

3 Jatinder Agarwal 0 0.00 45000 0.56

4 Madhu Fincap Private Limted 36636 0.46 4627 0.06

5 Rahul Kailashchand Jain  34627 0.43 34627 0.43

6. Globe Capital Market Ltd 2724 0.03 32350 0.40

7. Vaddi Srinivasa Bose Babu 26100 0.33 3000 0.04

8. Varsha Chugh 25500 0.32 25500 0.032

9. Siraj Ali 22000 0.27 16394 0.20

10. Indira Securities Private Limited 21000 0.26 1994 0.02

5772858 72.08 - -

*Out of 5772858 Eq. Shares (72.08%) belonging to Late Myadam Raghuveer, 1443215 (18.02%) were 

transferred to Myadam Shirisha by way of transmission.

Rao

Mr. Myadam Kishan Rao



*Mr. Myadam Kishan Rao, Chairman and Managing Director

585921814

50000000

158216416
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0
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0

0 0
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0

0
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M. Shirisha

105000-

-

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - -

- - - - -

105000

105000

221666

221666

221666

221666

221666

221666

548332

548332

581666

33334

33334

33334

50,000

60,00,000

*The Chairman & Managing Director is not drawing any remuneration except sitting fees.

*

(in `)

33334

33334
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fees imposed

(give details)

23,68,800 47,38,280

47,38,28023,68,800



Date : 30th July 2018.

1,086,260

702.78

57.27

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of

Using LED lighting and solar power panels have minimized the unit cost. Company continues to buy 
power from alternate source.

Development of Immunity enhancing, Digestion promoting food and / or neutraceuticals / Health 
supplement products to address different nutritional and health compromising shortcoming of the modern 
lifestyle.

Product improvement, cost reduction and improved product quality.

like

Impact of measures at (i) and (ii) above for reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact 
on the cost of production of goods.
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624.98

12.50

12.50

12.50 12.50

Mr. M. Kishan Rao Mr. S. Nageswara Rao

30th May 2018 30th May 2018



SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
stFOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2018

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 

The Members,

BAMBINO AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CIN: L15440TG1983PLC004363
104, 4TH Floor,E block Surya Towers, 

SP Road, Secunderabad TG 500003 IN

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance with applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Bambino Agro Industries Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”). 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliance expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and also the information provided and declaration made by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit.

We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 

ended on 31st March, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 

has proper Board-processes and compliancemechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 

reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 

the Companyforthe financial year ended on 31st March, 2018 according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to theextent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings to the extent 

applicable to the Company -  Not Applicable to the extent of Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowing;

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 ('SEBI Act') to the extent applicable to the Company :-

 a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011;

 b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

 c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2009, as amended from time to time;

 d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with Client –[Not Applicable as the 

Company is not registered as Registrar to Issue and Share Transfer Agent during the financial year under 

review];

 e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2015 - Not 

Applicable as there was no reportable events;
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 f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 - Not 

Applicable as there was no reportable events;

 g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - [Not 

applicable as the Company hasnot delisted / proposed to delist its equity shares from anyStock 

Exchange during the financial year under review];

 h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 - [Not applicable as the 

Company has not bought back / proposed to buy-back any of its securities during the financial year 

under review];

6. Other laws specifically applicable to the Company namely :

 a)  Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and the rules made thereunder;

 b)  Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and the rules made thereunder;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI);

(ii) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.  The change in the Composition of the Board of 

Director that took place during the period under review, were carried out in compliance with the provisions of 

the Act.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' view. If any, are captured and recorded as part 

of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size 

and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations 

and guidelines etc.

Place: Secunderabad, Telangana

Date: 30th July 2018

for C GORAK & CO.
Company Secretaries

Chandrakanth Gorak
(Proprietor)

FCS 9628; C.P.No. 11346



Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. The maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Further, 

the Company is also responsible for devising proper systems and process to ensure the compliance of the 

various statutory requirements and Governance systems.

2. It is the responsibility of the Management of the Company to ensure that the systems and process devised 

for operating effectively and efficiently. 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

4. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 

ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. we believe that the process and practices 

followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representations about the compliance of laws, 

rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

6. The Compliance of the provisions of other applicable laws, rules and regulations is the responsibility of the 

management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

7. The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Annexure to the Secretarial Audit Report

To, 

The Members,

BAMBINO AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CIN: L15440TG1983PLC004363
104, 4TH Floor,E block Surya Towers, 

SP Road, Secunderabad TG 500003 IN

Place: Secunderabad, Telangana

Date: 30th July 2018

for C GORAK & CO.
Company Secretaries

Chandrakanth Gorak
(Proprietor)

FCS 9628; C.P.No. 11346
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Mr. M. Kishan Rao, Chairman & Managing Director



30th July 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

of Bambino Agro Industries Limited

247

3.07%.
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Industry structure and development
Your Company operates in the packaged food segment mainly comprising of all pasta related food products 

and ready-to-cook food namely, instant pasta, instant soups, and ready to eat snack segment. Urbanization and 

increasing number of working women has pushed consumers to look for products offering convenience. This is 

leading to trading up from unpackaged to packaged and unbranded to branded products. Additionally, 

consumers are more aware and health conscious which has led them to choose packaged food products more 

wisely. Given that the industry is underpenetrated, improved competition will create more awareness and better 

availability through stronger distribution and bolster volume growth. 

Reinforcing your Company's presence in the market, we have attempted to reconfigure our strategy, resources, 

and quickly be adept to the rapidly changing environment.  The leadership alignment has created the necessary 

intent to drive organic growth with successful strategies. The impact of this could be seen in the changing 

business growth trajectory. We are also looking forward to strengthen and drive our analogy of products by 

entering into category of cereals, liquid food and Whole wheat Atta with our base material.

Opportunities and threats
The food processing industry is seeing growth and profitability due to increased domestic consumption and 

growing capabilities to meet the standards and demand for traded commodities and processed goods around 

the globe. The food processing sector is growing at an average rate of 8 percent per annum per the 

Government of India (GOI) February 2018 budget report.

India ranks second in terms of global food production and is the world's largest producer of many commodities 

though very little is processed owing to market disconnects and infrastructure challenges. If modern food 

processing technologies, cold storage techniques, and food quality grades are adopted, the sector is expected 

to gain strength and the link between agriculture and manufacturing will forge. Analysts expect a stronger food 

processing sector will address some of the rising concerns of food wastage and farmer profitability. As 

disposable incomes rise, consumer diets are diversifying and people are demanding greater convenience and a 

higher-degree of processed and prepared products. Even though policy reforms suggest progress, import of 

non-standardized foods and ingredients is a challenge owing to regulatory and tariff barriers.

Future Outlook
Fast growth in the food processing sector has a key role to play in strengthening India's economy by improving 

agriculture trade in both domestic and international markets. It holds immense relevance in ensuring food 

security of the country and is a crucial factor in reducing post harvest wastages. A thriving food processing 

industry is bound to give better returns and improve the livelihood of our farmers. It's a tough way ahead, but not 

far! Interest in functional foods and drinks has been fueled by a desire for convenience as well as health and will 

continue to grow in India. This is fueled by a strong link between diet and health. 

2017-18

Year Ended

31st March 2017

Year Ended

31st March 2018

47474

27842

16867.15

1483.81

373.93

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

1687.02



The overall economic environment will impact all our businesses but we expect that we will be able to tide over it 

better than industry on account of strong brand, relatively lower dependence on wholesale channel and a 

culture of thrift that has been institutionalised.

Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance
Your company's key thrusts for the current year would be to deliver profitable growth through introduction of 

premium pasta products, venturing into liquid food, cereal and expanding its base in food category, aggressively 

scale up the FMCG initiatives . We continue to develop new products, improve quality and nutritive value of new 

and existing products. The company also seeks to enhance supply chain and sales distribution capabilities. 

Strong management and technical capabilities, good financial flexibility, experience in more than 3 decades in 

manufacturing and marketing the pasta products all these initiatives are expected to provide Sustainable growth 

by establishing the company as the leading FMCG player in the pasta segment.

Risks & concerns
The major risks faced by our company is intense competition from both organized and unorganized sector and 

price wars resorted by competitors, which may affect the profitability. Volatility in commodity prices is the other 

significant risk.

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy
The Company has an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size and complexity of the 

organization. The Company has undertaken a comprehensive review of all internal control systems to take care 

of the needs of the expanding size of the Company and also upgraded the IT support systems. A system of 

internal audit to meet the statutory requirement as well as to ensure proper implementation of management 

and accounting controls is in place. The Audit Committee periodically reviews the adequacy of the internal audit 

functions.

Human relations/Industrial relations
The company continues to provide extensive training to its sales team to improve its product knowledge and 

selling skills. The employees are motivated by creating employee friendly working environment and attractive 

compensation management. The relation with workers and employees remained cordial during the year under 

review. The company employed 247 employees during the year.

Cautionary Statement
Statement in this "Management Discussion & Analysis” may be considered to be "forward looking statements" 

within the meaning of applicable security laws or regulations. Actual results differ materially from those 

expressed or implied, important factors that could make a difference to the company's operations include Indian 

demand supply conditions, raw material availability and prices, agricultural yield, Government regulations 

besides other factors such as litigations and court cases.
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31st March 2018

29th 

Mach 2018

7

7

7

4

During the period from 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018 the Board of Directors met seven times. The dates on 
which the Board Meetings were held are 23rd May 2017, 6th July 2017, 12th August 2017, 9th September 
2017, 13th November 2017, 28th November 2017 and 13th February 2018. All material information is 
circulated to the directors before the meeting or placed at the meeting including information required to be 
made available to the Board as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6

Myadam

N

Y

Mr. Myadam Kishan Rao, Chairman and Managing Director is a Grand father of Ms. Myadam Shirisha, Director. All 

other Directors are Independent to each other. 



Shares held by Non-Executive Independent Directors

Name of the Director
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During the year under review, 4 Audit Committee meetings were held between 1st April 2017 to 31st March 

2018, i.e. 23rd May 2017, 12th August 2017, 13th November 2017 and 13th February 2018.

2

twice 06th July 2017 and 12th August 2017 with full attendance.

Myadam

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. S. Nageswara Rao, Dr. S. Venkataraman and 

Dr. Lalitha Ramakrishna Gowda as members. 

(net) 
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28 21

28 28

28 22

28 05

The committee met 26 times during the Financial year on 5th April 2017, 26th April 2017, 3rd May 2017, 17th 

May 2017, 31st May 2017, 28th June 2017, 12th July 2017, 19th July 2017, 2nd August 2018, 23rd August 

2017, 6th September 2017, 20th September 2017, 4th October 2017, 1st November 2017, 15th November 

2017, 23rd November 2017, 13th December 2017, 20th December 2017, 27th December 2017, 10th January 

2018, 18th January 2018, 14th February 2018, 21st February 2018, 28th February 2018, 7th March 2018, 14th 

March 2018, 21st March 2018, 28th March 2018. The committee approved transfer of 7772 Equity Shares and 

resolved 75 Investor Grievances.

Mr. Myadam Kishan Rao

*Late Myadam Raghuveer

*Ceased w.e.f. 25th June 2017

Stakeholders Relationship Committee



Mr. Myadam Kishan Rao

Independent Directors' Meeting

29th March 2018,

IND AS-24.
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2017 2018

2016-17 34th AGM 9.30 AM on

29th March 2018

34th Annual General Meeting held on 29th March 2018:- Special resolution passed for appointment 

of Mr. Myadam Kishan Rao as Chairman and Managing Director.

47

5

20

47

5

20

75 75

 7772 100373

32nd Annual General Meeting held on 30th September 2015:- Special resolution passed for re-

appointment of Mr. Myadam Kishan Rao as Chairman and Managing Director and approval of related 

party transactions. 

33rd Annual General Meeting held on 16th July 2016:- Special resolution passed for payment of 

remuneration to Late Myadam Raghuveer and approval of related party transactions.



2018.

rd 

`.

31st

Compliance
A Statement of Compliance with all Laws and Regulations as certified by the Managing Director, Chief 

Financial Officer and the Company Secretary is placed periodic intervals for review by the Board. The Board 

reviews the compliance of all the applicable Laws and gives appropriate directions wherever neccessary.

is 
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27th September 2018

10.00 A.M.

21st September 2018 to 27th September 2018

2018-19

30th June 2018

30th September 2018

31st December 2018

31st March 2019

Monday, 22nd October 2018, subject to 

shareholders approval

2018-19

Central Depository Services (India) Limited

Marathon Futurex, A Wing, 25th Floor, 

NM Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, 

Mumbai - 400 013



2017-18

April - 17 250.45 223.90

May - 17 296.90 220.00

June - 17 243.90 192.35

June - 17 208.40 186.00

August - 17 214.00 166.70

September - 17 251.40 195.00

October - 17 245.90 205.55

November - 17 241.60 200.00

December - 17 356.20 219.45

January - 18 355.00 271.00

February - 18 284.00 227.05

March - 18  253.90 211.15

31st March 2018

1 1-5000 10193 95.59 9064570.00 11.32

2 5001-10000 246 2.31 1928670.00 2.41

3 10001-20000 123 1.15 1867610.00 2.33

4 20001-30000 29 0.27 732670.00 0.91

5 30001-40000 14 0.13 500730.00 0.63

6 40001-50000 14 0.13 637310.00 0.80

7 50001-100000 22 0.21 1551510.00 1.94

8 100001 & Above 22 0.21 63805390.00 79.67

 Total 10663 100.00 80088460.00 100.00

1 Resident Individuals 10416 1725018 21.54

2 Promoters 5 6003634 74.96

3 Indian Mutual Funds 2 5204 0.06

4 Non Resident Indians 48 45994 0.57

5 Clearing Members 4 395 0.00

6 Banks 1 100 0.00

7 Non Resident Indian Non Rep 10 12969 0.16

8 Bodies Corporates 100 152232 1.90

9 H U F 77 63300 0.79

 Total 10663 8008846 100.00

31st March 2018
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7153825 89.32%

31st March 2018.



30th July 2018
M. Kishan Rao
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30th May 2018

For Kumar & Giri

J. BHADRA KUMAR
PARTNER

Membership No. : 025480

2018

2018



To THE MEMBERS OF BAMBINO AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Bambino Agro Industries Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, and the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for 
the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in 
equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under section 143(11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's 
preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind 
AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 

Kumar & Giri 8-2-686/B/1, 12 Vyjayanthi, Flat # 3 & 4, 

2nd Floor, Road # 12, Banjara Hills, 

Hyderabad - 500 034. Ph: 040-67455565

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the 
changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.  

 c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash 
Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account. 

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act. 

 e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on 31st March, 
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 
2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's 
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

 g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:  

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS 
financial statements.

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 
losses. The Company did not have any derivative contracts.  

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

2.   As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Kumar and Giri
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 001584S

J BHADRA KUMAR
(Partner) 

M.No. 025480
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30th May 2018



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of 
our report of even date to the members Bambino Agro Industries Limited on the Ind AS financial 

statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bambino Agro Industries Limited (“the 
Company”) as of 31st March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error.We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accountingprinciples. A company's internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.
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For Kumar and Giri
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 001584S

J BHADRA KUMAR
(Partner) 

M.No. 025480
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30th May 2018

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in 
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2018, based on the criteria 
for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.



Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor's Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of 

our report of even date to the members of Bambino Agro Industries Limited on the Ind AS financial 

statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018)
(i)  In respect of its fixed assets:

 (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 

and situation of the fixed assets.

  (b)   The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased manner 

over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the 

Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically 

verified by the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to 

us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

  (c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on 

the examination of registered sale deeds/share certificate provided to us, we report that, the title 

deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of buildings, are held in the name of the Company as 

at the balance sheet date.

(ii)   As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable 

intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act hence 

reporting under clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

(iv)  The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees or securities hence 

reporting under clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(v)   According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit 

during the year. The Company does not have unclaimed deposits as at 31st March, 2018 and accordingly, 

the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act are not applicable to the 

Company. 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of 

the Act.

(vii)   According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:  

 (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including 

Provident Fund, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, 

Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate 

authorities. 

  (b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Incometax, Goods and 

Services Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other 

material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the 

date they became payable. 

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, company has 

not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a bank or Financial institution or government. The 

Company has taken following loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and government during 

the year. Company has not issued any debentures.

Type of Loan Name of Bank / Financial

Institution

Amount of Loan

Working Capital loan HERO FIN CORP. LTD ` 5,00,00,000/-

Amount in `
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For Kumar and Giri
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 001584S

J BHADRA KUMAR
(Partner) 

M.No. 025480
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30th May 2018

(ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not 
applicable.

(x)   To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the 
Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported 
during the year. 

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is 
not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance 
with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the 
details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements etc. as required by 
the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully 
or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not 
applicable.

(xv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its holding company or 
persons connected with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable.

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934 hence reporting under clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.



A ASSETS
1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS
 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 463,076,602 473,045,746 469,931,308

 (b) Capital work-in-Progress  1,503,335 - 7,340,497  

 (c) Financial assets

  (i) Investments

   (a) Other Investments 3 19,549,000 19,549,000 19,549,000

 Total Non-Current Assets  484,128,937 492,594,746 496,820,805

2 CURRENT ASSETS
 (a) Inventories 4 912,833,975 870,562,581 935,648,314

 (b) Financial assets

  (i) Trade receivables 5 37,891,082 36,257,010 29,428,758

  (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6a 9,893,026 19,772,398 24,036,704

  (iii) Other Bank balances 6b 5,312,080 5,576,275 4,497,957

 (c) Other current assets 7 102,391,397 85,378,898 78,317,107

 Total Current Assets  1,068,321,560 1,017,547,162 1,071,928,840

 Total Assets  1,552,450,497 1,510,141,908 1,568,749,645 

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 EQUITY
 (a) Equity Share Capital 8 80,088,460 80,088,460 80,088,460  

 (b) Other Equity 9 425,733,647 388,341,005 369,889,345  

 Total Equity  505,822,107 468,429,465 449,977,805

 LIABILITIES

1 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
 (a) Financial Liabilities

  (i) Borrowings 10 514,293,339 345,699,282 213,032,043

  (ii) Other financial liabilities 11 19,167,015 20,718,015 30,364,601

 (b) Provisions 12 6,828,103 7,925,746 4,544,972

 (c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 13 39,463,709 36,024,477 30,878,257

 Total Non-Current Liabilities  579,752,166 410,367,520 278,819,873

2 CURRENT LIABILITIES
 (a) Financial Liabilities

  (i) Borrowings 14 250,000,000 212,154,723 428,031,927 

  (ii) Trade Payables 15 122,488,707 227,985,366 201,041,173

  (iii) Other financial liabilities 16 31,410,082 99,825,831 102,227,199 

 (b) Other current liabilities 17 23,279,492 38,491,352 37,709,875

 (c) Provisions 18 21,973,011 41,096,085 47,419,641

 (d) Current Tax Liabilities 19 17,724,932 11,791,566 23,522,152 

 Total Current Liabilities  466,876,226 631,344,923 839,951,967

 Total Equity And Liabilities  1,552,450,497 1,510,141,908 1,568,749,645

Significant Accounting policies & Notes to 

Accounts  1

Notes No 2 to 27 are integrated part of these Financial Statements.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2018  

31st March 2018     
Audited

Notes
No.

31st March 2017     
Audited

01st April 2016     
Audited

As at

PARTICULARS

Amount in `

As per our report of even date
for  Kumar & Giri
Chartered Accountants, 
F.R.No. 001584S

for and on behalf of the Board

J. BHADRA KUMAR
Partner 
Membership No.025480

V. NAGARAJAN
Chief Financial Officer

RITU TIWARY
Company Secretary & Legal

(M.No. ACS 19056)

M. KISHAN RAO
Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN NO.02425967)

Place : Secunderabad
Date  : 30th May 2018

As at As at



Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2018

REVENUE

Revenue from operations 20 1,686,714,868 2,078,630,404

Other income 21 555,574 576,320

Total Revenue (I)  1,687,270,442 2,079,206,724

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 22 1,064,571,490 1,235,394,927

Changes in inventories of finished goods,  23 (6,292,393) 62,536,438
work-in progress and Stock in Trade

Employee benefits expenses 24 180,442,876 204,111,403

Finance costs  25 60,806,417 87,304,783

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2ii 28,403,360 27,456,394

Other expenses 26 300,167,867 408,461,803

Total expenses (II)  1,628,099,618 2,025,265,748

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary    
items and tax (I-II=III)  59,170,825 53,940,976

Exceptional items (IV)  - -

Profit before extraordinary items and tax (III-IV=V)  59,170,825 53,940,976 

Extraordinary Items (VI)  - -

Profit before tax (V-VI=VII)  59,170,825 53,940,976

Tax expense (VIII)

Current tax   17,383,950 11,535,510

Deferred tax  3,439,232 5,146,220

Total Tax Expense  20,823,182 16,681,730

Profit for the year (VII-VIII=IX)  38,347,643 37,259,246

Other Comprehensive income 

 A  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
   (i) Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans  (955,000) (3,380,774)

 B  Items that will reclassified to profit or loss  - -

Total Other Comprehensive income /(loss) net of tax (X)  (955,000) (3,380,774)

Total Comprehensive income for the year (IX+X)  37,392,643 33,878,472

Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of 10 each  4.67 4.23

Notes to Accounts & Significant Accounting policies  1

The Notes No 2 to 27  are integrated part of these Financial Statements.

31st March 2018 31st March 2017

Year Ended Year EndedNotes

No.PARTICULARS

Amount in `
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Cash Flow Statement Annexed to the Balance Sheet 

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

  Net Profit before Tax and after extra ordinary items  59,170,825 53,940,976

  Adjustments for :

  Add: Depreciation   28,403,360 27,456,394

  Financial Expenses   60,806417 87,304,783

  Less: Net gain on Foreign currency transactions 479,640 453,198

  Less: Interest Income   75,934 123,122

 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 147,825,028 168,125,833

  (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories   (42,271,394) 65,085,734

  (Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables  (1,634,072) (6,828,252)

  Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable   (105,496,657) 26,944,194

  Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liabilities / Provisions (96,817,319) (19,674,036)

  Increase / (Decrease) in Non Current Liabilities  (3,603,643) (9,646,586)

  (Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances (19,486,802) (2,096,646)

  (Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets 2,474,302 (4,965,145)

  (Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Current Assets  - -

  Cash generated from Operations  (119,010,556) 216,945,096

  Direct Taxes Paid   (17,383,950) (11,535,510)

  NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  (1,36,394,506) 205,409,586

B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

  Purchase of Fixed Assets  (19,937,551) (23,230,345)

  Proceeds on sale of Fixed Assets  - -

  Net gain on Foreign currency transactions  479,640 453,198

  Interest received  75,934 123,122

  NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (19,381,977) (22,654,025)

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

  Proceeds transferred to General Reserve  1,917,382 1,693,924

  Proceeds from Long Term & Short Term Borrowings 206,439,334 (83,209,964)

  Financial Expenses  (60,806,417) (87,304,783)

  Dividend paid  - (15,426,812)

  Dividend equalisaton reserve  (1,917,382) (1,693,924)

  NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 145,632,916 (185,941,558)

  Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (10,143,558) (3,185,988)

  Cash and Cash Equivalents-opening balance 25,348,673 28,534,661

  Cash and Cash Equivalents-closing balance 15,205,106 25,348,673

Year Ended

31st March 2018

Year Ended

31st March 2017
PARTICULARS

Amount in `

As per our report of even date
for  Kumar & Giri
Chartered Accountants, 
F.R.No. 001584S

for and on behalf of the Board

J. BHADRA KUMAR
Partner 
Membership No.025480
Place : Secunderabad
Date  : 30th May 2018

V. NAGARAJAN
Chief Financial Officer

RITU TIWARY
Company Secretary & Legal

(M.No. ACS 19056)

M. KISHAN RAO
Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN NO.02425967)



Balance at 1st April 2016 80,088,460 

Changes in equity share capital during the year   -

Balance at 31st March 2017  80,088,460 

Changes in equity share capital during the year   -

Balance at 31st March 2018 80,088,460

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2018

Amount in `

Amount in `.

Particulars

B. OTHER EQUITY

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

TotalSecurities 

Premium

Retained 

Earnings

General 

Reserve

Capital

Reserve

Balance at 1st April 2016  42,760,500 236,149,343 40,353,102 50,626,400 369,889,345

Additions during the year: -  1,693,924  1,693,924

 Profit for the year - 37,259,246   37,259,246 

 Central subsidy 

 Deletions during the year

 Dividend on Equity Shares  (12,814,154)   (12,814,154)

 Tax on Distributed profits on Equity Shares  (2,612,659)   (2,612,659)

 Transfer to General Reserve  (1,693,924)   (1,693,924)

   20,138,509 1,693,924  21,832,433

Other comprehensive income   (3,380,774)   (3,380,774)

for the year, net of income tax (*)  

Total comprehensive income for the year - (3,380,774)   (3,380,774)

Balance at 31st March 2017 42,760,500 252,907,078 42,047,026 50,626,400 388,341,004

Additions during the year:  -  1,917,382   1,917,382

Profit for the year - 38,347,643   38,347,643

 Deletions during the year

 Dividend on Equity Shares

 Tax on Distributed profits on Equity Shares

 Transfer to General Reserve  (1,917,382)   (1,917,382)

Other comprehensive income  - (955,000)   (955,000)

for the year, net of income tax (*) 

Total comprehensive income for the year - (955,000) -  (955,000)

Balance at 31st March 2018 42,760,500 288,382,339 43,964,408 50,626,400 425,733,647 

(*) Other comprehensive income for the year classified under retained earnings is in respect of remeasurement 

of defined benefit plans.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2018

Note No. 1

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
 The Company is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the 

Companies Act 1956.  Its shares are listed on BSE.  The Company is engaged in manufacturing and selling 

vermicelli, macaroni and other pasta products under the brand name “Bambino”.  The Company also sells 

the products of its related companies (common Directors) engaged in the manufacture of pasta and instant 

mixes, spices, namkeens, sweet-meat masalas etc. 

2.  Transition to Ind AS
 a) The Company's standalone financial statements for the quarter ended June 30, 2017 are the first 

interim standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

 b) The adoption of Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, using April 1, 2016 as the 

transition date. Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS standards and interpretations that are effective for 

the first Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter ended June 30, 2017, be applied 

consistently and retrospectively for all fiscal years presented.

 c) All applicable Ind AS have been applied consistently and retrospectively wherever required. The 

resulting difference between the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities in the standalone 

financial statements under both Ind AS and Indian GAAP as of the transition date have been 

recognized directly in equity at the transition date.

3.  Basis of Preparation

 (a)  Statement of Compliance
  The standalone financial statements has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 

Standards ("Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of 

the Act.

  For all the periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016 the Company prepared its 

financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the 

Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

(Indian GAAP). These financial statements are the first, the Company has prepared in accordance with 

Ind AS. Refer to note on transition to Ind AS for information on how the Company adopted Ind AS.

 (b) Functional and presentation currency
  The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of 

the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates.

 (c ) Use of estimates and judgement
  The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to 

make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 

reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these 

estimates.

  Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 

affected. 

4.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 a) The company has regrouped/reclassified the previous year figures wherever necessary in accordance 

with the requirements applicable in the current year.

 b) Lease Rentals and other expenses in respect of leased assets are treated as revenue expenditure.

 c) Sales include packing charges and commission to Selling Agents and discounts, and net of Central 

Excise duty paid.

 d) Export sales are accounted on the basis of Bill of Lading.
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 e) Export sales are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing as on the transaction date and adjusted for 

the exchange difference, if any, upon realization.

 f) Lease income on leased assets are recognized and included under the other operating revenues.

5.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
 a) All fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation.

 b) Recognition and measurement: Normally Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures directly 

attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The Company has elected to apply the optional exemption 

to use this previous GAAP value as deemed cost at 1 April 2016, the date of transition.

 c) In the case of imported machinery purchased out of foreign currency loan, the changes in liability 

arising due to exchange rate at the time of repayment of loan installment and due to realignment of 

loan in Indian Rupee have been adjusted in the cost of machinery.

 d) Depreciation has been provided on straight line method based on life assigned to each asset in 

accordance with Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.

 e) Depreciation on additions to fixed assets has been calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of 

addition.

 f)  No depreciation has been provided on the fully depreciated assets.       

6.  INVENTORIES
 a) Stores and Spares are valued at cost and are charged to revenue on the basis of issues.

 b) Raw material and packing materials are valued at cost.

 c) Finished goods are valued at Cost or Market price whichever is lower.

 d) Empties are valued at net realizable value.

 e) Obsolete/damaged and unserviceable stores & spares are Nil during the year (previous year Rs. Nil). 

7.  DEFERRED REVENUE EXPENDITURE
 a) Expenditure incurred on advertisement and other expenses for promotion of new products and 

recruitment of key personnel is amortised over a period of five years, having due regard to the nature of 

expenses and the benefit that may be derived there from. Expenditure on routine product 

advertisement and personnel recruitment is expensed off to profit & loss account in the year in which it 

is incurred.

8.  RETIREMENT BENEFITS
 a) Provident fund contributions, a defined contribution scheme, are charged to the profit and loss account.

 b) Gratuity liability, a defined benefit scheme, is provided based on actuarial valuation and funded through 

the scheme administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India.  The contribution paid/payable under 

the scheme is recognised during the period in which the employee render the services.

9.  PRIOR PERIOD AND EXTRA-ORDINARY ITEMS 
Prior period and extra-ordinary items and changes in accounting policies having material impact on the 

financial affairs of the company are disclosed.

10.  EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 
 Material events occurring after the date of Balance Sheet are taken into cognizance.

11. TAXES ON INCOME
 Current Tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period.  Deferred 

Tax is recognized, on timing differences, being the difference between taxable Income and accounting 

Income that originates in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.  

Deferred Tax assets are recognized subject to the consideration of prudence.  The tax rates and laws that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted as of the balance sheet date are applied.

12.  PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITES 
 A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has  a  present  legal  obligation which 



can be reasonably estimated, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation. 

 Contingent liabilities not provided in the books of accounts are disclosed in the notes to accounts note no IV.

13.  FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
 Foreign-currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at the 

Balance Sheet date. The gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated  in a foreign  currency  and  

measured  at  fair  value  are  translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was  

determined.  Non-monetary  assets  and  non monetary  liabilities  denominated  in  a  foreign  currency  and  

measured  at  historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

 Revenue, expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange 

rate in effect on the date of the transaction. Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign 

currency transactions are included in determining net profit for the period in which the transaction is settled.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
 Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax  by  the  weighted  average  number  

of  equity  shares  outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit 

after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share 

and also the weighted average  number  of  equity  shares  that  could  have  been  issued  upon conversion 

of all dilutive potential equity shares

15. INVESTMENTS
 Investments are valued at cost

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash-on-deposit with banks and financial institutions.  The  

Company  considers  all  highly  liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase of  three  

months  or  less  and  that  are  readily  convertible  to  known  amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

17. CASH FLOW STATEMENT
 Cash  flows  are  reported  using  the  indirect  method,  whereby  profit before  tax  is  adjusted  for  the  

effects  of  transactions  of  a  non-cash  nature,  any  deferrals  or  accruals  of  past  or  future  operating  

cash  receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing  or  financing  cash  

flows.  The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated

18.   REVENUE RECOGNITION
 Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 

customers. Revenue is measured net of returns,trade discounts and volume rebates. The timing of the transfer 

of risks and rewards varies depending on the individual terms of the sales agreement.

19. GOVERNMENT SUBSIDY
 Subsidy from the Government is recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the company will 

comply with the conditions attached to them.

20. EQUITY RECONCILIATION

Particulars As at 31st March 2017

Equity as per previous GAAP (Indian GAAP) 4684.29

Add:   -

Increase in reserves due to change in accounting policy -

Fair valuation of forwards  -

Deferred tax adjustment -

Equity as per Ind As 4684.29



Annual Report 2017-18

i. 
C

O
S
T

 
B

a
la

n
ce

 a
s 

a
t 

1
st

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

6
 

7
,5

7
0

,9
9

8
 

1
3

9
,7

7
8

,9
7

0
 

4
7

2
,1

4
2

,4
9

9
 

3
1

,4
5

7
,1

7
8

 
3

,9
0

2
,2

7
1

 
1

1
,1

0
4

,6
1

6
 

8
,3

1
6

,9
9

3
 

6
7

4
,2

7
3

,5
2

5
  

  
  

  
 

 
A

d
d
iti

o
n
s 

 
 

1
,9

1
0
,1

6
2
 

2
4
,7

1
9
,8

9
6
 

6
7
,8

8
6
 

2
,0

7
9
,8

0
8
 

1
,1

9
4
,2

0
5
 

5
9
8
,8

8
5
 

3
0
,5

7
0
,8

4
2
  

  
  

  
 

D
is

p
o
sa

l 
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
-

B
a
la

n
ce

 a
s 

a
t 

3
1

st
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

7
 

7
,5

7
0

,9
9

8
 

1
4

1
,6

8
9

,1
3

2
 

4
9

6
,8

6
2

,3
9

5
 

3
1

,5
2

5
,0

6
4

 
5

,9
8

2
,0

7
9

 
1

2
,2

9
8

,8
2

1
 

8
,9

1
5

,8
7

8
 

7
0

4
,8

4
4

,3
6

7

 
A

d
d
iti

o
n
s 

 
- 

2
7
2
,0

3
4
 

1
6
,4

8
3
,9

4
4
 

- 
1
,1

7
8
,8

2
7
 

1
8
3
,8

4
2
 

3
1
5
,5

6
9
 

1
8
,4

3
4
,2

1
6

 
D

is
p
o
sa

l 
 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
-

 
B

a
la

n
ce

 a
s 

a
t 

3
1

st
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

8
 

7
,5

7
0

,9
9

8
 

1
4

1
,9

6
1

,1
6

6
 

5
1

3
,3

4
6

,3
3

9
 

3
1

,5
2

5
,0

6
4

 
7

,1
6

0
,9

0
6

 
1

2
,4

8
2

,6
6

3
 

9
,2

3
1

,4
4

7
 

7
2

3
,2

7
8

,5
8

3

ii.
 A

cc
u

m
u

la
te

d
 D

e
p

re
ci

a
ti
o

n

 
B

a
la

n
ce

 a
s 

a
t 

1
st

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

6
 

 
6

0
,3

5
3

,3
7

8
 

1
2

0
,6

5
9

,4
2

7
 

1
0

,1
1

0
,3

8
0

 
2

,1
8

5
,7

1
2

 
4

,9
5

9
,3

0
2

 
6

,0
7

4
,0

1
7

 
2

0
4

,3
4

2
,2

1
6

  
  

  
  

 

D
e
p
re

ci
a
tio

n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

 
4
,1

2
2
,6

1
7
 

1
7
,0

3
9
,4

1
2
 

3
,9

2
5
,0

5
7
 

1
5
6
,9

8
0
 

1
,0

9
7
,8

4
7
 

1
,1

1
4
,4

8
1
 

2
7
,4

5
6
,3

9
4
  

  
  

  
 

D
is

p
o
sa

l 
 

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

  
  

  
  

B
a
la

n
ce

 a
s 

a
t 

3
1

st
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

7
 

 
6

4
,4

7
5

,9
9

5
 

1
3

7
,6

9
8

,8
3

9
 

1
4

,0
3

5
,4

3
7

 
2

,3
4

2
,6

9
2

 
6

,0
5

7
,1

4
9

 
7

,1
8

8
,4

9
8

 
2

3
1

,7
9

8
,6

1
0

  
  

  
  

 

D
e
p
re

ci
a
tio

n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

 
 

4
,1

8
4
,8

9
8
 

1
7
,9

2
0
,7

2
1
 

3
,9

2
9
,9

5
6
 

4
3
3
,1

6
4
 

1
,0

5
2
,8

7
0
 

8
8
1
,7

5
1
 

2
8
4
0
3
,3

6
0
  

  
  

  
 

D
is

p
o
sa

l 
 

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

  
  

  
  

B
a
la

n
ce

 a
s 

a
t 

3
1

st
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

8
  

 
6

8
,6

6
0

,8
9

3
 

1
5

5
,6

1
9

,5
6

0
 

1
7

,9
6

5
,3

9
3

 
2

,7
7

5
,8

5
6

 
7

,1
1

0
,0

1
9

 
8

,0
7

0
,2

4
9

 
2

6
0

,2
0

1
,9

7
0

iii
. C

a
rr

yi
n

g
 A

m
o

u
n

ts
 (

I-
II)

 
B

a
la

n
ce

 a
s 

a
t 

0
1

st
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

6
 

7
,5

7
0

,9
9

8
 

7
9

,4
2

5
,5

9
2

 
3

5
1

,4
8

3
,0

7
2

 
2

1
,3

4
6

,7
9

8
 

1
,7

1
6

,5
5

9
 

6
,1

4
5

,3
1

4
 

2
,2

4
2

,9
7

6
 

4
6

9
,9

3
1

,3
0

9

B
a
la

n
ce

 a
s 

a
t 

3
1

st
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

7
 

7
,5

7
0

,9
9

8
 

7
7

,2
1

3
,1

3
7

 
3

5
9

,1
6

3
,5

5
6

 
1

7
,4

8
9

,6
2

7
 

3
,6

3
9

,3
8

7
 

6
,2

4
1

,6
7

2
 

1
,7

2
7

,3
8

0
 

4
7

3
,0

4
5

,7
4

6

B
a
la

n
ce

 a
s 

a
t 

3
1

st
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

8
 

7
,5

7
0

,9
9

8
 

7
3

,3
0

0
,2

7
3

 
3

5
7

,7
2

6
,7

7
9

 
1

3
,5

5
9

,6
7

1
 

4
,3

8
5

,0
5

0
 

5
,3

7
2

,6
4

4
 

1
,1

6
1

,1
9

8
 

4
6

3
,0

7
6

,6
0

2

N
o

te
 N

o
. 2

P
R

O
P
E
R

TY
, 
P
LA

N
T 

A
N

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T

D
e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
ss

e
ts

 
TO

TA
L

Fr
e
e
h

o
ld

 

la
n

d
B

u
ild

in
g

s
P
la

n
t 

&
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t

V
e
h

ic
le

s
Fu

rn
it
u

re
O

ff
ic

e
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t
C

o
m

p
u

te
rs

iv
. C

a
p

it
a
l 
W

o
rk

 i
n

 P
ro

g
re

ss

 
C

a
p
ita

l 
w

o
rk

 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

ss
 

 
7
,3

4
0
,4

9
7
 

- 
7
,3

4
0
,4

9
7
 

- 
1
,5

0
3
,3

3
5
 

- 
1
,5

0
3
,3

3
5

P
a
rt

ic
u

la
rs

 
B

a
la

n
ce

 a
s 

a
t

1
st

 A
p

ri
l 2

0
1

6

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t

31
st

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
7

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t

31
st

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
8

C
ap

it
al

is
e
d

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 y

e
ar

 

C
a
p

it
a
lis

e
d

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

A
d

d
it
io

n
s

A
d

d
it
io

n
s

A
m

o
u
n
t 
in

 `



Amount in `

Number  Face value  All unquoted unless 
  per Unit  otherwise specified 

   Non Trading Investments 

1954900 10/- Spectrum Power Generation 19,549,000 19,549,000 19,549,000  
   Limited; 0.05%  15 year Redeemable 
   Preference Shares fully paid up

Note No. 4

INVENTORIES
 Raw materials   169,050,279 171,240,198 192,556,397

 Packing Materials   99,341,665 93,921,340 82,562,977

 Stock in trade ( in respect of goods acquired for trading) 71,201,274 39,481,250 32,544,340  

 Finished Goods   538,770,049 532,477,656 595,014,094

 Stores, spares & fuels   34,470,708 33,442,137 32,970,506

Total    912,833,975 870,562,581 935,648,314

  
Note No. 5

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured, considered good  37,891,082 36,257,010 29,428,758   

Doubtful     - - -

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts(expected credit loss allowance) - - -

Total    37,891,082 36,257,010 29,428,758 

Note No. 6

CASH AND  BANK BALANCES
a. Cash and Cash equivalents:

 Cash in hand and as Imprest  1,185,921 895,166 1,250,908 

 On Current Accounts   8,707,105 18,877,232 22,785,796 

Total    9,893,026 19,772,398 24,036,704   

b. Other Bank balances: 

 Dividend Account   4,161,555 4,179,685 3,427,674

 Deposits held as Margin money/Security for Bank Guarantees 1,150,525 1,396,590  1,070,283 

Total    5,312,080 5,576,275 4,497,957

Note No. 3

OTHER INVESTMENTS

31st March 2018 31st March 2017 1st April 2016 
As at As at As at 



Amount in `

Authorised

1,55,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- Each 155,000,000 155,000,000 155,000,000

2,50,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10/- Each 250,000,000 250,000,000 250,000,000

     405,000,000 405,000,000 405,000,000

Issued Capital   62,520,670 62,520,670 62,520,670   
Less: Shares Derated (4,08,757 shares of Rs.10/- each) 4,087,570 4,087,570 4,087,570

from Pormoters 
Add: Issue of 22,47,736 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 22,477,360 22,477,360 22,477,360

Subscribed & Paid up Capital  
80,91,046 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 80,910,460 80,910,460 80,910,460   
Less: 82,200 Equity Shares forfeited 822,000 822,000 822,000   

Total    80,088,460 80,088,460 80,088,460

Note No. 9   

OTHER EQUITY 

Capital Reserve   50,626,400 50,626,400 50,626,400   

Securities Premium Reserve  42,760,500 42,760,500 42,760,500

Total    93,386,900 93,386,900 93,386,900  

General Reserve   42,047,026 40,353,102 37,144,238 

Add : Transfer during the period 1,917,382 1,693,924 3,208,864 

Total    43,964,408 42,047,026 40,353,102

Retained earnings   252,907,078 236,149,343 186,856,273 

Add: Profit for the period  38,347,643 37,259,246 64,177,288

  Central subsidy  - - 3,750,000

Less:  Dividend on Equity Shares - 12,814,154 12,814,154      

  Tax on Distributed Profits on Equity Shares - 2,612,659 2,611,200 

  Transfer to General Reserve 1,917,382 1,693,924 3,208,864       

  OCI  arising out of remeasurement of defined benefit 955,000 3,380,774 -

  obligation - Net of taxes

Total     288,382,339 252,907,078 236,149,343 

GRAND TOTAL   425,733,647 388,341,005 369,889,345

Note No. 8

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Note No. 7

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Other Loans & Advances   5,745,845 4,974,855 7,094,158

Balances with Customs & Excise Authorities  62,812,348 48,778,727 41,471,053 

Deposits with Govt. Departments  12,698,461 9,576,065 9,354,060 

Advance Income Tax   439,210 6,078,069 11,488,043 

Prepaid Expenses   4,285,989 6,760,291 1,795,146 

Advances to Employees   16,409,544 9,210,891 7,114,647 

Total    102,391,397 85,378,898 78,317,107

31st March 2018
As at As at As at 

31st March 2017 1st April 2016 
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Note No.11   

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 Security Deposits received  19,167,015 20,718,015 30,364,601  

 Total    19,167,015 20,718,015 30,364,601   

Amount in `

31st March 2018 31st March 2017 1st April 2016 
As at As at As at 

Note No.10

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

BORROWINGS

Loans repayable on demand 

SECURED LOANS 

 Term loans from banks 

 Indian Overseas Bank Ltd  - 2,116,359 14,863,117

 First Charge on the Assets Procured from out of the Term Loans

 State Bank of India  - 38,588,472 53,773,365

 exclusive First Charge on all the Fixed Assets 

 created by this Term Loan

 IDBI    - - 45,339,782

 Exclusive charge on the Current Asset acquired out of 

 Short Term Loan at Flour Mill Division at Gurgaon. 

 APSFC Working Capital Term Loans - - 8,149,997     

 Pari passu First Charge on the Fixed Assets of the Co.

 situated at Gurgaon to the extent of Rs.17.89 Crores 

 HERO FIN CORP. LTD  187,881,285 221,986,783 -

 Exclusive charge on the current assets (other than stock funded

 through warehousing funding) and  fixed assets 

 of the company(Land&Building, Plant&Machinery) situated at

 Begumpur Khatola, Gurgaon, Haryana. 

 Total    187,881,285 262,691,614 122,126,261

VEHICLE LOANS 

 HDFC Bank Ltd   266,698 635,734 971,207

 Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd  8,147,333 10,613,912 12,853,793

 Total    8,414,031 11,249,646 13,825,000

 Total Secured Loans  196,295,316 273,941,260 135,951,261

UNSECURED LOANS 

Loans From Others 

 Directors    278,598,023 71,758,022 77,080,782

 Others    39,400,000 - - 

 Total    317,998,023 71,758,022 77,080,782

GRAND TOTAL   514,293,339 345,699,282 213,032,043
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Amount in `

31st March 2018 31st March 2017 1st April 2016 
As at As at As at 

Note No.12   

PROVISIONS 

Employee Benefits 

 Gratuity Fund   6,828,103 7,925,746 4,544,972

Total    6,828,103 7,925,746 4,544,972

Note No.13   

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 

 Deferred Tax Liability -(net)  39,463,709 36,024,477 30,878,257  

Total    39,463,709 36,024,477 30,878,257

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES: 

Note No.14   

BORROWINGS 

Loans repayable on demand 

 Secured

 Working Capital-loans repayable on demand

 State Bank of India - Cash Credit  - 8,440,717 252,145,233

 Pari Passu First Charge on the Current Assets and  Pari Passu

 Second Charge on the Fixed Assets of the  Co. 

 HERO FIN CORP. LTD  250,000,000 200,000,000 -

 1.Exclusive charge on the current assets (other than stock funded 

 through warehousing funding) 2. Exclusive charge on fixed assets 

 of the company(Land&Building, Plant&Machinery) situated at 

 Begumpur Khatola, Gurgaon, Haryana. 

 Indian Overseas Bank - Cash Credit - 3,714,006 115,837,214

 Pari Passu First Charge on the Current Assets and  Pari Passu 

 Second Charge on the Fixed Assets of the  Co.

 IDBI  Bank Ltd.,   - - 60,049,480

 Pari Passu First Charge on the Current Assets and Pari 

 Passu Second charge on the Fixed Assets of the co.

Total    250,000,000 212,154,723 428,031,927 

Note No.15   

Trade payables

 Other Trade Payables  122,488,707 227,985,366 201,041,173

Total    122,488,707 227,985,366 201,041,173



Amount in `

31st March 2018 31st March 2017 1st April 2016 
As at As at As at 

Note No.16   

Other Financial Liabilities 

Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 31,410,082 99,825,831 102,227,199  

Total    31,410,082 99,825,831 102,227,199   

Note No.17   

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 Other payable-employees  7,453,996 7,718,393 3,304,089 

 Sales Tax & Withholding taxes payable 11,663,941 26,593,274 30,978,112

 Unpaid/unclaimed Dividends 4,161,555 4,179,685 3,427,674  

Total    23,279,492 38,491,352 37,709,875   

Note No.18   

PROVISIONS 

 Provision for Audit fees  1,534,000 1,102,500 1,097,250     

 Provision for Rent   588,619 945,454 1,199,622

 Provision for Contract wages  2,706,647 2,541,987 1,141,541     

 Other provisions             17,143,745 36,506,144 43,981,228 

Total    21,973,011 41,096,085 47,419,641

Note No.19   

CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES 

 Provision for Income Tax  17,724,932 11,791,566 23,522,152  

Total    17,724,932 11,791,566 23,522,152 
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20 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

 Sales of products 1,676,906,735 2,031,970,852

 Less:  Excise Duty 2,384,132 11,984,223 

   1,674,522,603 2,019,986,629

 Sales of services 8,237,589 50,992,587

 Other Operating Revenues 3,954,676 7,651,188

 Net Sales 1,686,714,868 2,078,630,404

21 OTHER INCOME   

 Interest received 75,934 123,122  

 Net gain on Foreign currency transactions 479,640 453,198

 Total  555,574 576,320  

22 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED   

 Opening stock: Raw materials 171,240,198 192,556,397  

 Purchases during the year 613,867,169 671,309,050

   785,107,367 863,865,447

 Closing stock 169,050,279 171,240,198

 Raw Materials consumed (a) 616,057,088 692,625,249

  Raw  Materials consumed in detail             

  Rawa 70,613,226 80,211,325

  Wheat 545,443,862 612,413,924  

   616,057,088 692,625,249

 Opening stock: Packing Materials 93,921,340 82,562,977

 Purchases during the year 106,919,450 118,914,284

   200,840,790 201,477,261

 Closing stock 99,341,665 93,921,340

 Packing Materials Consumed (b) 101,499,125 107,555,921

 Purchase of Stock in Trade (c) 347,015,277 435,213,757  

 Total  (a+b+c) 1,064,571,490 1,235,394,927

23 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHD GOODS    

 WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE        

 Stock at close - Finished 538,770,049 532,477,676

 Stock at commencement - Finished 532,477,656 595,014,114

 Increase/(Decrease) in Stocks 6,292,393 (62,536,438)

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

 Salaries,Wages,Bonus,Gratuity & Allowances 165,244,898 186,500,938

 Contribution to Provident & Superannuation Fund 6,646,711 7,801,868  

 Staff welfare expenses 8,551,267 9,808,597

 Total  180,442,876 204,111,403

Amount in `

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2018 31st March 2017PARTICULARS



25 FINANCE COST   

 Interest expense on Term Loans 24,698,695 16,595,524  

 Interest expense on Overdrafts and other borrowings 29,997,042 63,215,747  

 Other borrowings cost 6,110,680 7,493,512  

 Total  60,806,417 87,304,783  

26 OTHER EXPENSES

 Repairs - Plant  &  Machinery 15,147,460 13,389,941

        Buildings 142,410 603,352  

 Power & Fuel 58,135,678 63,124,408

 Rent  3,075,570 7,468,276

 Lease Charges - 333,000

 Rates & Taxes 1,217,087 1,691,488

 Insurance 2,592,292 4,190,614

 Advertisement,Publicity and Sales Promotion 26,121,882 35,911,058

 Travelling and Other Conveyance Expenses 25,109,832 30,915,751

 Office Maintenance 3,017,459 4,163,405

 Vehicle Running & Maintenance 1,191,128 1,751,799  

 Electricity & Lighting 706,457 452,123

 Books & Periodicals 31,796 35,315

 Subscription & Membership 605,050 890,685

 General Expenses                     2,977,111 2,166,688

 Printing and stationery 1,023,111 830,826  

 Postage and Telephones 2,474,677 3,363,127

 Staff recruitment and training 189,312 89,105

 Auditors remuneration - As Auditors 

  For  Statutory Audit Fee 1,000,000 1,050,000

  For Certification Fee 50,000 28,250

  Service Tax - 157,500

 Legal , Professional and Consultancy charges 4,331,230 5,254,123

 Freight and Forwarding (including Ocean freight) 112,795,810 181,808,997

 Directors` Sitting fees 631,666 708,418  

 Discount and claims to customer and other selling expenses 17,684,225 22,230,897

 Commission on  Sales 14,855,997 21,919,835  

 Security services 3,974,368 3,896,527  

 Research  & Development Expenses 1,086,260 36,295 

 TOTAL 300,167,867 408,461,803

Amount in `

PARTICULARS
Year Ended Year Ended

31st March 2018 31st March 2017
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  b.   Guarantees

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

2017-18

2017-18

2017-18

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

NIL

a) Bank guarantees

Employer's Contribution to PF

Employer's Contribution to ESI

-

3.00

60.88

2.33

-

32.70

71.24

1.70

`. in Lacs

 c. The Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax -1(2), Hyderabad has raised a demand of `14.50 lacs 

against the company for the Assessment Year 2013-14. The company has preferred an appeal 

before Commissioner of Income Tax Appeals – Vi, Hyderabad. No provision has been made in the 

books for the aforesaid demand.   

V  The Disclosures of Employee Benefits  are given below:

 i. Defined Contribution Plan
Contributions to defined contribution plan recognized as expenses for the year are as under:    

 ii.  Gratuity Plan
  Gratuity payment a defined benefit scheme administered by LIC of India, amount of ̀  54,84,332/-

(Previous year ` 34,06,274/-) is included in Employees Benefits expenses (Note 24) in the Profit & 

Loss account.

VI. Taxes
 Provision for Income tax ̀ 1,73,83,950/- Previous year ̀ 1,15,35,510/-

 VII.  Director's Sitting Fees
 Other expenses includes Directors Sitting Fee of ̀  6,31,666 /- (Previous year ̀  7,08,418/-)

` in Lacs

27.  NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 

 I. Share Capital
  For non-payment of call-moneys, 82,200 equity shares of ̀ 10/- each were forfeited by the Board after 

due compliance of legal formalities and such shares have not been reissued so far.

 II.  Secured Loans
  a) Term loan and Working Capital Demand Loan from Hero Fin Corp Ltd is hypothecated on exclusive 

charge on current assets (other than stocks funded through the warehousing funding) and fixed 

assets of the company(Land & Building and Plant & Machinery situated at Begampur, Khatola, 

Gurgaon, Haryana) with personal guarantee of Mr. Myadam Kishan Rao and Ms. Myadam Shirisha.

 III. Sundry Creditors
  Based on the information available with the Company, there are no dues/Interest outstanding to Micro, 

Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act 2006, as at 31st March 2018. (Previous Year: Nil)

 IV.   Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

 a.   Claim against the company not acknowledged as debts: `



VIII.  Deferred Tax
 a. The accumulated deferred tax liability amounting to ` 3,56,65,778/- on account of timing 

differences between book and tax profits as of 1st April 2001 has been adjusted against General 

Reserve and Subsequent year`s deferred tax adjustments were carried out in the respective Profit 

and Loss Accounts.

 b. During the current year the tax effect of the timing differences resulted in deferred tax liability of        

` 34,39,232/- and the same has been shown in P&L Account.

IX Related Parties Disclosure

 i) Particulars of Related Parties

 ii) Key Management Personnel

 iii) Transactions with Related Parties

S.No.

S.No.

S.

No.

Particulars of the Party

Particulars of the Party

Particulars of the Party Purchase Sales
Services

Rendered

Services

Availed

Lease
Rentals

Received

Lease
Rentals

Paid

Nature of Relationship

Nature of Relationship

1. Seshasayi Foods Private Limited Common Directors

2. Ghanta Foods Private Limited Common Directors

3. Bambino Pasta Food Industries Private Limited  Common Directors

 (formerly known as MLR Industries Private Limited) 

4. KRS Finance Private Limited  Common Directors

5. Marshal Transport Company Partners are Common Directors

6. Madhava Roller Flour Mills  Partners are Common Directors

7. M. Kishan Rao (HUF)  Members are Common Directors

8. M.K. Rao Family Trust   Members are Common Directors

1. Mr. Myadam Kishan Rao  Chairman & Managing Director

2. *Mr. Sanjay Baral   Director (Sales & Marketing)

3. Ms. Ritu Tiwary   Company Secretary

4. Mr. V. Nagarajan   Chief Financial Officer

1. Seshasayi Foods Private Ltd 21.72 - - - 12.00 -

2. Ghanta Foods Private Limited 3649.58 68.40 16.43 - 1.20 -

3. Bambino Pasta Food Industries 659.27 0.50 10.85 - 6.00 1.20

 Private Limited

4. Marshal Transport Company - - - 701.78 - -

`. in Lacs

*Resigned w.ef. 31st July 2018
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X. Applicability of IND AS 108
 The Company is engaged in Food Products, which as per IND AS 108 is considered as the only 

reportable business segment. The geographical segmentation is not relevant as exports are 

insignificant.

XI.  Earnings Per Share

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

2017-2018

2017-2018

2017-2018

2016-2017

2016-2017

2016-2017

Profit after taxation as per Profit & Loss 373.93 338.79

Weighted Average number of Equity Share outstanding 80,08,846 80,08,846

Basic and diluted earnings per share in Rs.  4.67 4.23

(Face value - ` 10 per share 

a) C.I.F. Value of Imports  

 -Capital equipment including Spare Components 47.98 27.77

b) Expenditure in Foreign Currency

 -Travelling   9.29 28.21

c) Earnings in Foreign Currency

 -F.O.B. Value of Exports   702.78 706.70

1. Statutory Audit Fee  10.00 10.50

2. Certification & Other Services  0.50 0.28

XII. Managerial Remuneration

S.

No.
Name

1. Mr. Myadam Kishan Rao Managing Director - -

2. Late Myadam Raghuveer Managing Director - 80.50

3. *Mr. Sanjay Baral Director  23.3360.00

Deignation 2017-2018 2016-2017

` in Lacs

XIII. Lease Rentals:
 The operating revenue includes lease rentals from Seshsayi Foods Private Limited for Indore unit and 

Bambino Pasta Food Industries Private Limited for Bibinagar unit of the company.

XIV.  Additional information pursuant to Note 5 of Part II of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013:

 1. Foreign Exchange Transactions

Sl. No.

Sl. No.

 2. Details of Auditors' Remuneration (Excluding Service Tax)

` in Lacs

` in Lacs

` in Lacs

*Resigned w.ef. 31st July 2018



Particulars

Particulars

2017-2018

2017-2018

2017-2018
`

2016-2017
`

2017-2018

%

2016-2017

%

2016-2017

2016-2017

Sale of Manufacturing Products

1. Pasta and Other Food Products  16769.06 20319.71

Services (Commission on CSA Sales)

1. Pasta and Food Products   27.28 441.50

1. Wheat and Wheat Products 6160.57 6926.25

2. Packing Materials  1014.99 1075.56

3. Traded Goods    3470.15 4352.14

    Total 10645.71 12353.95

Indigenous    7175.56 100 8001.81 100

Imported      - - - -

   Total  7175.56 100 8001.81 100

Sl. No.

Sl. No.

 3. (a) Values of Sales and Consumption

  (b) Consumption

  (b) Break up of Consumption of Raw Materials

 4. Amount of Expenditure incurred on Corporate social responsibility is ̀  12,50,000/-

XV. Dividend: The Company has proposed a dividend of  ̀  1.60 per share of face value of ̀  10/- each.

XVI. Previous year's figures have been re-grouped / re-arranged wherever necessary to confirm to current 

year's classification.

XVII. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

XVIII. Late Myadam Raghuveer, the Managing Director of the Company expired on 25th June 2017 and he 

was holding 57,72,858 (72.08%) Equity shares of the company. On his expiry the shares are transferred 

to his legal heirs namely Mrs. Myadam Anitha (Wife), Mr. Myadam Kartekeya (Son), Ms. Myadam 

Shirisha (Daughter) and Mrs. Myadam Sugandha Bai (Mother) equally.

` in Lacs

` in Lacs

for  Kumar & Giri
Chartered Accountants, 
F.R.No. 001584S

for and on behalf of the Board

J. BHADRA KUMAR
Partner 
Membership No.025480

Place : Secunderabad
Date  : 30th May 2018

V. NAGARAJAN
Chief Financial Officer

RITU TIWARY
Company Secretary & Legal

(M.No. ACS 19056)

M. KISHAN RAO
Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN NO.02425967)
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We request you to kindly submit the ECS/Bank details latest by enable us to include the same 

for the payment of the current year's dividend.



THIRTY FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - ATTENDANCE SLIP

35 27th September

2018 at 10.00
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35

27th September, 2018 at 10.00
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1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2018 
and reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend on the equity shares for the financial year 
2017-18.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Myadam Shirisha (DIN No. 
07906214) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
herself for re-appointment.

4. Appointment of Mr. S S N Murthy (Din No: 08189713), as a 
Director of the Company 

5. Appointment of Mr. S S N Murthy (DIN No. 08189713) as 
Director- Finance of the Company on a remuneration of
` 7,00,000/- per month

6. Adoption of Memorandum of Association

7. Addition to main Objects of Memorandum of Association

8. Adoption of Articles of Association

2018
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